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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
21 Middle Street

	Historic Name:
Otis & Maria Thompson House

	Uses:
Present:  single residence


	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1840

	Source:  historic maps, deeds

	Style/Form:   
Greek Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
stone

	Wall/Trim:  
vinyl clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


none

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Second rear ell added south side

Garage added on north end


Vinyl siding added


Window sash replaced



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:    0.19 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the northwest side of Middle Street one house north of its intersection with Clark Street. The area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Otis & Maria Thompson House is a story-and-a-half wood frame single dwelling is located on the west side of Middle Street north of Clark Street.  It is one of a number of similar houses built around the same time on Middle Street.  Situated at the front of a small lot, the house has a two-room plan divided by a central entry and a two-story shed roof ell attached to the north side of the rear.  (The topography of the lot slopes to the north exposing the basement at grade on that end.)  The roof overhangs the walls on all sides with the eaves distinguished by attenuated Classical entablatures with short returns at the eave line on the gable ends.  The five bay front façade contains a central entrance and flanking windows evenly spaced; the upper story contains no windows.  End walls contain one central window on the first story and two windows on the second.  The entrance is embellished with a hood mounted on large scrolled brackets, which was a later addition.  
A cross-gable ell is attached to the north side of the rear wall.  Like the house, the ell has a two-story façade on the north end. A second ell of similar size was added to the south end of the rear wall at a later time.  A one-story, one-car garage was added at the basement level on the north end of the house.  A doorway into the basement is positioned at the east end of the north wall.

The house is sited close to the street, set back behind a small yard.  The entrance is elevated on a later brick stoop to compensate for the slope of the frontage.  A small yard on the south side corresponds with a paved parking area on the north side.  A large yard covers the rear of the lot; it contains mature plantings and is framed by a stockade fence.
The Otis & Maria Thompson House, built ca. 1840 is a representative example of a modest worker dwelling in Georgetown.  Its story-and-a-half scale and massing are characteristic features.  Ornament is focused on the entrance, notably a large hood mounted on large scrolled brackets.  With limited alterations, the house is a distinctive contributing component of the village historic district.
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
Originally called Bacon Street, Middle Street in Georgetown is shown as an unlabeled street with ten buildings on it on the 1856 map of Georgetown center. The house at 21 Middle Street was one of the ten shown, and it was certainly built by 1850 and may have been on site as early as 1840. In May 1839 shoe manufacturer Joseph Little, who deeded much of the land bordering Middle Street in the 1830s and 1840s, sold a 30-rod tract including this house site to shoe manufacturer Otis Thompson.
 The deed suggests that no house was standing on the site at the time of the sale. By 1840, however, Thompson is shown in this general neighborhood in the Georgetown census, and the 1850 census certainly shows him here. He is enumerated with $500 in real property at that time.
Born in Salisbury in 1810, Otis Thompson was the son of John and Ora Poor Thompson, who moved from Salisbury to Rowley between 1813 and 1816, when their son Eri Poor Thompson was born in the latter town; Eri Thompson was also a Georgetown shoe manufacturer. In 1831 Thompson married Lois Maria Stickney of Rowley, and they had nine children, seven of whom survived infancy. The 1850 household included Thompson, his wife, and his children Caroline Matilda (born 1833), Susan Maria (born 1834), Harriet Ann (born 1836), and Albert Parsons (born 1841, and here shown as Alfred A.). From 1845 until his death in 1882 Thompson served Georgetown as deputy sheriff, and he was, according to one account, “well known in Essex County. . . . 
He was blunt in his manners, abrupt in his greetings and at times ironical in his methods of speech, but never deceitful nor dissimulating.”

In May 1856 Otis Thompson sold the 21 Middle Street lot and its buildings to Patrick Cronin for $700.
 Born in Ireland about 1828, Cronin was a shoe cutter and wheelwright who had been living in Georgetown since at least 1855. In 1857 he and his wife Mary, also an Irish immigrant, had a son, George, in Georgetown. The 1856 map attaches his name to this house, and the 1860 census shows him in the neighborhood with $700 in real property. This household included his wife, his son George, and a boarding Irish immigrant bootmaker. At that time Cronin was a wheelwright, but by 1870 he had returned to shoe factory work. Strangley, the 1870 Essex County directory identifies both Cronin and his 17 Middle Street neighbor Samuel Coffin as living on “Ham Street,” not Bacon Street, and misidentifies the street’s other residents as living on Maple Street.
In 1883 Mary Cronin died of consumption at the age of fifty-one, and by 1885 Patrick Cronin was boarding in a home on Prospect Street. In August 1883 he sold 21 Middle Street to Lydia L. Spofford for $1050.
 The 1884 map attaches the name “Mrs. Spofford” to the property. Born in 1837 in Topsfield, Lydia L. Kneeland Spofford was the daughter of Cyrus and Sally Boardman Kneeland, and in 1859 she married Mighhill Wellington Spofford of West Boxford, and the census shows the couple renting in Georgetown; Mighill Spofford was a shoemaker. He died while living in this house in May 1899, and in 1900 Lydia Spofford is shown here with her brother James W. Kneeland, a hotel clerk who is mistakenly shown as the property owner. In 1910 she shared the house not only with her brother James but her widowed sister Sarah M. Scates, the oldest of them at seventy-three years old.
In 1911 Lydia Kneeland Spofford died at the age of seventy-three, and her brother remained in the house until Spofford’s executor sold it in 1918 to Mary C. McGauley.
 Born in Ireland about 1869, McGauley was the wife of James P. McGauley, an Irish immigrant steam railway laborer, and the 1920 census shows them at 21 Middle Street. In November 1924, after her husband had died, McGauley sold the property to George Lafayette Kelly of Waltham and his sons Frank D. of Haverhill and Walter F. of Indianapolis.
 They acquired the property for Ardella May Jackson Kelly, born in Gerogetown in 1889 and the daughter of undertaker John F. Jackson. Ardella Jackson had married George Kelly’s son Charles Cushing Kelly in Haverhill in 1915. Born in 1875, Charles C. Kelly was a laundry worker, and in 1920 the couple rented on North Street in Georgetown with their children Elizabeth and Walter. In January 1925 Charles Kelly died of a cerebral hemorrhage at the age of forty-nine. The 1930 census shows the widow Ardella Kelly at 21 Middle Street with her children Mary, Walter, and George L., born in 1923 and no doubt named for his grandfather. 
The 1940 census shows Ardelle Kelly renting 21 Middle for $15 a month. Her son George and daughter Mary both lived with her, and son Walter was then in the U.S. Army. In August 1942, after the death of George L. Kelly in Waltham, his sons Frank and Walter sold 21 Middle Street to Hilda Phelps Lee, the wife of Frank W. Lee.
 The Lees owned and occupied 21 Middle Street until 1958, Wayne F. and Helga A. Pearson owned the property from 1965 to 1982, and in 1992 the property was sold to Christopher R. and Sharon F. G. Hopkins. They placed the property in trust in 2005, and it belongs now to Sharon F. Gilmour in trust.
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21 Middle Street: views from NE (top) and W (bottom)
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Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
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                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Otis & Maria Thompson House, built ca. 1840 is a representative example of a modest worker dwelling in Georgetown.  Its story-and-a-half scale and massing are characteristic features.  Ornament is focused on the entrance, notably a large hood mounted on large scrolled brackets.  With limited alterations, the house is a distinctive contributing component of the village historic district.
� Joseph Little to Otis Thompson, 1 May 1839, SED 331:231.


� The Poor-Poore Family Gathering at Andover, Mass., Sept. 10, 1884 (Salem: Salem Press, 1885), 37.


� Otis and Maria Thompson to Patrick Croning [sic], 14 May 1856, SED 531:299.


� Patrick Cronin to Lydia L. Spofford, 14 August 1883, SED 1114:3


� Cyrus A. S. Kneeland, administrator estate Lydia A. Spofford, to Mary C. McGauley, 20 August 1918, SED 2398:50


� Mary C. McGauley to Frank D. Kelly, Haverhill; George I. Kelly, Waltham; and Walter F. Kelly, Indianapolis, 3 November 1924, SED 2617:205.


� Frank D. Kelly, Haverhill, and Walter F. Kelly, Indianapolis, to E. Hilda Phelps, now Hilda Phelps Lee, 5 August 1942, SED 3310:521.


� Paul L. and Mary R. Chaput to Wayne F. and Helga A. Pearson, 4 May 1965, SED 5264:368; Wayne F. and Helga A. Pearson to Michael and Helen F. Comeau, 21 Middle, 31 August 1982, SED 6974:520; Michael and Helen F. Comeau to Christopher R. and Sharon F. G. Hopkins, 28 June 1991, SED 10852:21; Sharon F. G. Hopkins to Sharon F. G. Hopkins, trustee Sharon F. G. Hopkins Trust, 18 October 2005, SED 24993:258; Sharon F. G. Hopkins, trustee Sharon F. G. Hopkins Trust, to Sharon F. Gilmour, trustee Sharon F. Gilmour Trust, 25 May 2009, SED 28447:377; Sharon F. Gilmour, trustee Sharon F. Gilmour Trust, to Sharon F. Gilmour individually, 23 November 2011, SED 30859:232.
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